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ORDER OF REFERENCE-

Tuespay, May 26, lﬂl

Ordered —That matters referred to in Return Nos. 147-147A, be referred
~ to the said Committee with instructions to examine such records as may by thd ‘v-u
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i PARLIAMENTARY RETURNS

Copy
16872 147a

Otrawa, May 9, 1931.

Dear Sir—With further reference to your Reference No. 41, Order of the
House of Commons moved by Mr. Vallance, for copies of correspondence between
Sir Geo. Foster and Mr. Robert Whiteside, of Birsay, Sask., I attach hereto
some further correspondence which should have been forwarded with our letter
of April 28th, and shall be glad if this can be made a supplementary return.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) J.C.T.OHARA,
: Deputy Minister.
i The Under-Secretary of State,
, Ottawa, Ont,
Feb:Fl.
Encl.

Copy
DunBraNE, January 19, 1920.

Sir GeEorGE FOSTER,
Ottawa, Canada.

As your humble servant I desire to seek information which will explain
fully the motive our Federal Government had in undertaking to take over and
sell the wheat crop for the year 1919. We fully understand the motive for selling
the crop in 1917 and 1918, but one thing we don’t know nor have we ever had
any report on the same and that was what was the price the Government got
ety for the wheat that was exported in the year 1918. We know the growers
s received $2.264 f.o.b. Fort William but did our Government sell it for export on
‘l' Vi S this basis to appear to be good fellows when the price of American wheat was
e $2.40 to $2.60 or did some one pocket the margins. Wheat and wheat products
E were the only food stuffs the Government controlled. We feel justified in de-
manding a report of the wheat that was exported and to get at plain facts
regarding the 1919 crop. Every farmer in Western Canada is under the impres-
sion that our Federal Government premeditated and entered into an agreement
to handle the wheat crop to make gains for themselves at our expense. Note I
said Federal Government; it may have been only members of our government,
at any rate it has been reported quite frequently and in bold statements that the
time the Grain Exchange was opened that our Government did sell or offer for
sale some 50 millions bushels wheat to Great Britain at a price of $1.75 per
bushel and not until the market was open did your Government make any at-
tempt to handle the wheat and we all know the market was advancing and to
take control of the wheat when it was at a price of $2.45 and attempt to offer
to set a price of $1.75 or even $2.15 does not appear to the farmers as one of
good faith, and for the Canadian Wheat Board to sell to our millers at $2.30
per bushel in the face of prices prevailing on all other products points out quite




——

clearly that our Federal Government is out to do what it has always done and
that is give the farmers second place. While I will admit we were under military
rule and the Government had the authority to so act, the manner in which they
acted does not show one of good faith and if the report is really true that our
Government did sell or offer for sale a certain portion of our wheat any price
in the minds of all well thinking men can only come to this conclusion that our
Government premeditated their action knowing they had power to control
things to suit themselves. I further wish to say in all friendliness the farmers
of Western Canada are determined to demand a report and make an investiga-
tion to learn the facts. We intend to out line our plans, decide on some action
at our Convention in Saskatoon in February and in writing this communication
to you I do not overlook or under-estimate the honor or high position you hold
as a worthy member of our Government. Neither do I go about finding fault or
abusing our Government while I know mistakes have been made and many
wronged I have every confidence that the good citizens of this fair country will
eright the wrongs develop the nation and restore prosperity. But the very fact
that such reports have been circulated, which I hope are false, should prove to
be true at this time will so lower our standard of government in the eyes of other
nations and so upset the faith of our people that it will be hard to deseribe the
result when it is brought to light, now the questions I desire an answer to are:

What was the price our Government sold the wheat crop of 1918 for that
is the wheat that was exported. Next did our Federal Government or members
of our Government sell or offer to <ell fifty or seventy five millions of bushels of
cur wheat erop of 1919 to the British Government at $1.75 before they had
made the final arrangements to market the wheat; I trust you will favor me with
this information and hope it will be possible to receive a reply before the date
of our Convention February 10th.

Your humble servant,

(Sgd.) ROBERT WHITESIDE.

Copy

DEPARTMENT OF TRADE AND COMMERCE

Orrawa, January 27th, 1929,
Roeertr WHiTESIDE, Esq., '
Dunblane, Sask.

Dear Mr. Whiresioe,—I have read your letter of the 19th. I am not,
I suppose personally acquainted with you but take you to be an honest-minded,
well-intentioned, intelligent man who seems to be troubled as to rumours and
reports which reach him, from what sources I do not know, and which cause
!nmtadoubts as to the actions and honesty of the Federal Government in this
instance.

It would be very long letter which would give you a full explanation of
why the Government in 1917 and 1918, took over the selling of the wheat cro

That, however, does not appear to cause you much trouble o far as the princip

was concerned, but you have difficulty in understandi h ey,
was adopted in 1919. y anding why a similar course
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e In short the course adopted in 1919 was based upon the reasons which

=
. it - made Government purchase necessary in 1917 and 1918, although the war had
- stopped with the signing of the Armistice, unfortunately the conditions caused
.- by the war continued in an even more aggravated form. Under these condi-
.~ tions, as operating in foreign countries, the selling of our wheat crop for 1919
i was rendered absolutely impossible owing to the financial and transport situa-
tion. Farmers, of whom I imagine you are one, should be pretty well satisfied
as to the necessity for this inasmuch as it was demanded and has been con-
> sistently supported since the formation of the Canadian Wheat Board by the
~  farmers of Canada as represented by the Canadian Council of Agriculture. As
- I stated above, to give you all the reasons would make my letter altogether

.~ too long and would probably not appeal to you in any stronger manner than the
" faet, which I have just mentioned to you, as to the opinion and wish of the
1N associated farmers of Canada, themselves.

A Now, as to the second part of your question, how much was received per

bushel for the wheat sold, and did anyone pocket the money, and especially

- did the Government or any of its members appropriate to themselves any part
"o of the proceeds of the sale, from the tone of your letter I do not think you,
- yourself, really believe that that has been done, but you are disturbed by what
- other people say. I do not know whether or not you will take my word for it,
Tl but whether you do nor not, I ean assure you it would have been impossible

for a member of the Government or the Government itself to have appropriated
a single dollar of the proceeds of the wheat sales of 1917 and 1918 to their own
ses,

A Board was established consisting of representatives of the different in-
terests concerned—producing, milling, transport and the consuming interests.
That Board work without pay, being simply given a certain per diem allowance
for expenses that they were called to meet in Winnipeg for consultation The
wheat was sold during the season of 1917 and 1918, as purchasers were found
and of course for different prices owing to changes in the worlds market price.

- As careful calculation as possible was made as to the expenses of storage,
~ insurance, and such necessary expenses which must be incurred in the storing,
- marketing and carrying of wheat. The Government stood to losc any deficit
Jdn price received from that paid to the growers of the grain. In the end after
~ all expenses were paid and the accounts closed. a small surplus remained in the
- hands of the Board of Grain Supervisers, the body that was established to
conduet the buying and selling of wheat. That surplus has been turncd over
to the consolidated revenues of Canada on which no Minister or anyone else
~ can get his grip. It is safe in the banks, to the credit of the Dominion of
~ Canada and can only be chequed out for legal authorized expenditures. It was
~ fortunate, during the course of these two years’ operation that the Government
- was able to give the farmers the price that was given and avoid any loss in the
transaction. If the markets had turned a little different, whilst the farmer
~ would received his price the country, as represented by the Government would |
~ have had to pay the deficit. , ,
Now, as to the year just passed, 1919, the Canadian Wheat Board was
- established with the same interests represented thereon. This Board, also is in
~ the main, giving its services to the country freely and without pay. Of course
~ clerks, etc., and managers have to be paid for the work they do, but that has
~to be done whether the marketing is done by the Government or private traders,
- as you quite well understand. The farmers receive a stated amount as the
~ first payment upon their wheat. This, of course, they receive whether the
~ market price goes up or goes down. As in the case of the two preceding years,
- the Government, nor any member thereof, receives nothing of that amount.
- After the expenses of marketing are paid, if there is any surplus, as T believe
here will be, this is divided amongst the farmers who were the original sellers
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of the grain. That is, under the arrangement, the farmer gets all that the .
world’s market price makes possible, he gets a first payment on his wheat on ;
the basis of $2.15 No. 1 Northern, and gets his proportion of the surplus which

may be left at the end of the transaction.

I think this makes plain to you the query raised in a part of your letter.

You state that every farmer in Western Canada is under the impression that '
our Federal Government premeditated and entered into an agreement to handle A
the wheat crop to make gains for themselves at your expense. Now, as a sensible
man, do vou really believe that? Note what I have stated to you as the recom-
mendation and claim made by the Council of Agriculture representing the
farmers of the Dominion. Therefore “every farmer” is too strong and you
will certainly have to modify that, and I am not going to take up my time or
yours in controverting a statement of that kind. I do not think you really
believe it. It is impossible that such should be the case and it is contrary of
course to the fact.

You also make another statement as current, whether you pledge yourself
to its beliefs or not, namely that at the time the Grain Exchange was opened,
the Government did sell, or offer for sale, 50,000,000 bushels of wheat to Great
Britain at $1.75 per bushel, to be paid to the farmers for their grain, and then o
took charge of the market when the price was at $2.40 or thereabouts with a
view of appropriating to their own uses the difference between that price and e
the market price of the wheat. i

There is not a word of truth in that statement. The Government did not = 4
sell a bushel of the farmers’ grain in 1919. All has been sold by the Wheat
Board under the conditions that I have explained above and all that is in it
will go to the farmers, less the necessary expenses of the operation. -

Now, I have spent a lot of my time and taken up a lot of yours in tryin 1
to answer quite frankly because I take it to be the letter of an honest man ang gt
it is, to me, passing strange, in the first place, that such absurd rumours could
find currency amongst intelligent people, and secondly, that there are good,
honest, intelligent people to take so much stock in them as to be tro
thereby. "

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) GEORGE E. FOSTER.

Sessional Paper No. 147

Monpay, May 4th, 1931.

Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated April 22nd, 1931,
showing: — »

A copy of all correspondence including letters, telegrams, memoranda, ete.,
between the Honourable Sir George Foster, while Minister of Trade and Com-
merce, and Robert Whiteside, of Birsay, in the province of Saskatchewan,
relative to the sale of the 1917-18 wheat crop. p 32l

C. H. CAHAN,
Secretary of State. - el

Mover: Mr. Vallance,
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TaE DEPARTMENT OF TrRADE AND CoMMERCE, CANADA

Otrawa, April 28, 1931.

Dear Sir—Replying to your reference No. 41, being an Order of the House
of Commons dated April 22, moved by Mr. Vallance, M.P., for a copy of all
the correspondence between Sir George Foster, Minister of Trade and Com-
merce, and Robert Whiteside of Birsay, Saskatchewan, in regard to the 1917-18
wheat crop, I beg to attache hereto the return giving all the information desired
as far as it is available in this Department.

Yours truly,

JAS. G. PARMELEE.

The Under-Secretary of State,
Ottawa.

Copy

Hon. Sir Grorge FosTer, Ottawa:

Dear Sir,—As your humble servant I have read vour letter very care-
fully. As for me being an honest minded, intelligent man, I leave that for
other to judge, but 1 do aim and strive e a true citizen of Canada,
and t allow remors to trouble me unless they are pretaining to my
own interests, and the question I have taken up with you is of vital interest to
every citizen of this province. As I expect you understand Saskatchewan
grows more wheat than all the other provinces combined. While I quite agree
“with our Federal Government in handling our wheat crop in 1917 and 1918,
everyone well knows that with an open market we would have received much
more for our wheat than the price that was paid by our government, and the
people of this province were the ones that lost more in this transaction than all
~ the rest of Canada combined. Manufacturers and farmers of other products
had an open market for their products and the result is wheat products are the
cheapest of all the necessities of life to-day. Now as for the farmers demanding
- the Government to handle our wheat crop, that took place before the wheat

crop was sown. He we been guaranteed a price then we would have no com-
plaints to make. Bue we were denied this and the open market was put in force
‘and not until our Government realized that the United States and Canada had
a short wheat crop and wheat was advancing in price did they take control of
the wheat market. Now the principle of handling our wheat is all right and
our Federal Government had handled it for two years, why did they not agree
to handle it in the spring of 1919 when they were asked to by the farmers.
But no, the farmers had to run all the risks, and I feel certain had we a good
average crop this past year we would have been obliged to sell our own wheat.
The in 1917 and 1918 we were forced to pay all the freight on our wheat from
Saskatchewan to Fort William. Then we had to pay our share of the freight
from Fort William to point of destination. The Board of Grain Supervisors
was asked to set a certain price at all terminals, Fort William, Winnipeg, Moose
Jaw, Saskatoon. But this was refused and the farmers of Saskatchewan lost
thousands of dollars by it. Now I agree with the Wheat Board this year in
pooling the prices on the wheat but they should also do it on the freight. And
the very fact that out wheat board has sold up to recently our wheat to the

*millers at $2.30 per bushel in the face of high prices of everything else does not

~ appear to me an act of good faith and in summoning it all up I consider the
people of Saskatchewan have been made the goat of the whole Dominion. If
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this wheat was grown equally all over the Dominion we would have little reason
for complaint, But is not. Take for instance, Alberta or Mamtpba, according
to what they produce in wheat they provide seed and flour for their people, they
have very little wheat to export. But with the small population in Saskatche-
wan we have five times the wheat to export that Manitoba and Alberta com-
bined and fifty times as much as all the rest of Canada. Now if rur Govern-
ment sold our wheat at prevailing prices in the world’s market in 1917 and
1918, you certainly had a large amount to turn into the Dominion treasury at
our expense and which our Federal Govt. has no right to whatever. And this
leads me to believe that the people of Saskatchewan have been trimmed out of
millions of dollars. The very fact that you state in your letter that our Wheat
Board are working without pay leads me to believe there is something wrong.
The farmers of Saskatchewan are not asking members of the Wheat Board or
members of our Government to work without pay, I would feel much better
if they were paid a good substantial salary. On page five of your letter you
speak of what I said about our Government or members of our Government
entering into an agreement to sell our wheat and make gains for themselves
at our expense. Well they well knew the intention of the Government was to
have an open market thinking that if we had a good crop prices would be low
they also knew we were still under war time measures Act and if prices went
high the Government would control the prices the same as in the two years
previous, and things just as corrupt as this have taken place in the past, and
while I asked you this question, I sincerely hope such is not the case, but 1
believe in getting the facts, and I think an investigation at this time is quite
proper. And in summing up your letter I look upon it in the same light as I
do one written by Mr. Wood, of Alberta, who is a member of the Wheat Board. ‘
Mr. Wood is trying to show that the average price for wheat in Canada will e
equal the average price paid in the United States, but Mr. Wood evades the
fact that our wheat grown in Saskatchewan which has been sold to the millers
at $2.30 is worth $3.30 in the United States. The United States has large
quantities of low grade wheat which sells at a discount while our western wheat e
is worth a premium the world over. So I wish to say to Mr. Wood or any mem-
ber of the Wheat Board, or of the Federal Government, that we have been taken :
advantage of in a somewhat underhanded way and for myself 1 wish to say it
would take too long to write all the facts. But at any time that the Canadian
Wheat Board or our Federal Government wish to discuss this question with me
why I am prepared to meet them.

Yours truly,
| ROBERT WHITESIDE.

To the business men of Saskatoon and the people in general I wish to say
the manner in which it effects the merchants is this, we have to get our money
from the wheat crop before we can spent it with the merchants. The Wheat
Board have sold millions of bushels of wheat to the people of Eastern Canada
at a price of $2.30 per bushel. Now they are ecoming at the people who had no
crop last year and charging them $2.40 per bushel for seed they have to put in
the ground and take another chance. My plan would be to charge the people
of Canada and other countries $2.75 per bushel for wheat for what they used
this year and sell seed to the farmers at $1.00 per bushel. The small amount
of wheat that will be sold for seed at $2.40 per bushel is very small items to
the millions of bushels that will be consumed for flour and this plan will make
millions of dollars for the people of Saskatchewan and treat those who are in
distress in a decent manner. -

ROBERT WHITESIDE.
Duxsraneg, Feb. 4, 1920.
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3 Copy

DunsraNEg, February 16, 1920.
Hon. Grorce FOSTER,

Ottawa,

Reply to your letter of Jan. 27/20.

Desr Sie,—I have went to the trouble of having my letter to yours printed
j s0 you could read it easier but there is some things I wish to say to you that I
i didn’t wish to have printed for this yvery reason owing to the unrest and dis-
b respect people in the west have for our Govt. officials, I thought best to keep
- that to myself now as I have stated we have been grossly wronged but I believe
- the Almighty created in every man a noble spirit of manhood but nature and
~ outside influences sometimes covers it up, now I believe in placing you on your
- honor. We individual farmers can’t expect to get our share of the profits, our
- Federal Govt. made from the sale of this wheat in 1917-18. But we ‘are going
~ to insist and demand that it shall be paid to the people of this Provinece to
develop and further promote the welfare of the country ?  we demand an
~ jnvestigation and a report made of the sales of this wheat the same as any firm
~ which carrying on any line of business would be prepared to show if necessary.
- I am taking this matter up with the business men of Saskatoon, Moose Jaw
- & Regina and the grain growers Association and the fact is T will have a solid
~ body of the people of this province to back me up in this. But this will be done
. in a quiet way and if this is cleared up it will restore confidence and respect for
~ the members of our Federal Govt. in Canada.
- Though I have not met you personally I will refer you to the Hon. Hugh
~ Guthrie who I am personally acquainted with. Mr. Geo. MeCraney of Saska-
~ toon speaks well of you.
i Your Humble Servant,

' : (Sgd.) ROBT. WHITESIDE.

—_—

Copy
n : FeBrUARY 21st, 1930.
 Roserr WaiTesiDE, Esq.,

i Dunblane, Sask.

Dear Mr. WHITESIDE—I have your letter of the 16th instant, with enclosure,

- and note what you say therein.
4 : Yours sincerely,

(Sgd.) GEORGE E. FOSTER.

Copy :
ApriL 30th, 1920.

‘Wharrese, Esq.,
Dunblane, Sask.

: 1' ~ DeaAr Sir,—Yours of the 14th instant has been received. My letter of the
' was intended to give an extended reply to your previous letters and I regret

~if it has not met your wishes or in any way modified your views. I fear that
~ other an*(ll pressing duties make it impossible for me to pursue the correspondence
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As to what has been paid back to the Consolidated Fund, the accounts are
not yet complete and not until adjustments are all made will it be possible to
know the exact amount of the surplus receipts, if any. As to your second ques-
tion, it is not the present intention of the Government to market the farmers’
crops of 1920, although in these disturbed times it is not always possible to fore-
cast the future. .
There is not, to my mind, the least possibility of returning to any one of
the provinces a share of the surplus receipts, if there are any, and which in any
case will not be very large. One would think that if any re-payments were to
be made other than to the Consolidated Fund of Canada, they should go into
the hands of the individual farmers and that would be a very difficult matter to
adjust. _
: Yours very truly, y

(Sgd.) GEORGE E. FOSTER.

Birsay, June 16, 1920.
Hon. GeorGe FOSTER,

Ottawa.

My Dear Sir,—Your letter of April 30th to hand and noted. Now I don’t think
our views are as far apart as you may think, While I fully believe the Farmers of G
Sask. have been trimmed out of millions of dollars by our Govt. marketing our i, "
wheat in 1917 & 1918, let me tell you it was the best education the people have l
every had and the best thing for the farmers of Western Canada. Bear in mind }
you can lose and yet be a big winner. The arrangements we have for marketing =
the wheat crop of 1919 was satisfactory in every way only the wheat board con- o
sidered the interests of the milling companies and consumers and gave the farm-
ers second place. Now I would like very much to know what more pressing
duties you have on hand than the marketing of our wheat erop which promises
at this time to be a large one and with the proper handling will be a redeeming
feature for all Canada and with facilities of Western Canada and with a large
crop to market, it will only be a calamity to have an open market. We need
Govt. Control and arrangements made to make certain deliveries every month.
The only people that want an open market is grain speculators who gamble on
the grain exchange. The elevator people get a larger com. under Govt. control than
they do in buying and selling in the open market. I don’t say that the Govt. should
take over the elevators and adopt the national marketing of wheat; I fully believe
that in another year the situation will be so changed and transportation facilities
g0 much better that Govt. control will not be necessary. In fact I don’t think it =~
best for the Govt. to enter into any industrial business though I must admit the =~
taking over of the railways was unavoidable and I can easily understand why -
they were operated at a heavy loss owing to the great disadvantages under
which they had to operate. . e

Now the fact that you do not know how much was turned into the Con-
solidated funds from the sale of our wheat crop owing, to the business not being
completed does not relieve you from having the business completed and a state-
ment made publie, if the wheat was sold at a profit of five cents per bus, or
fifty, we want to know. Then again it would be impossible to return to the ,
farmers privately their portion. Neither are we so near sighted as to expect it,
but we do insist that it be turned over to the province of Saskatchewan, our
portion, the same to be used for public improvement. Now Sir if this Govt. does .
not arrange for the marketing of our wheat this year, I will say to you I will
consider your largely responsible for it. Then the most important feature of

28
q



b
&
h\r. 1

L B et

xii SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

all is who shall the wheat board consist of. I wish to say frankly one third of
the twelve members must be bona fide farmers, under no circumstances will
t!xe farmers accept anything else. Taking everything into consideration, the
circumstances under which the farmers had to operate and the chances which
we had to take we have made a better success of our business than any other
industry that is doing business today. We have just as competent men among
the farmers to sell our wheat as any member you have on the wheat board. I
have pointed out to the wheat board where they have illtreated us and they are
unable to defend themselves, In closing I may say this question is very much
alive in the west at present and we intend it will be very much alive at Ottawa
until our request is granted and I think you should be in a position at this time
to give us a final answer.
Yours truly,

(Sgd.) ROBERT WHITESIDE.

JuxE 28, 1920.
Roserr WHITESIDE, Esq.,
Dunblane, Sask.

Dm!g Sir,—Your letter June 16th has been received, and I note what you
say therein, regarding the marketing of the wheat crop.

Yours very truly,
(Sgd.) GEORGE E. FOSTER.

Duxsrang, July 10, 1920.
Hon. Georae E. FosTER,
Ottawa.

My Dear Sir,—1 trust T will not weary you in making another reply to your
letter of recent date. T am glad to say that present indications appear that our
Federal Govt. has about decided to continue the Wheat Board for another year,

- though T do not think you used your influence to help it along. Well it is over

two months since I communicated with you to have it continued and I am
safe in saying the good judgment of the people at large has agreed with me
Now we should be setting out to be in a position to handle the crop which is
promising to be a large one. And I think our R.R. have not given thought to
how it can be handled systematically. First we should aim to have the Wheat
moved from districts the greatest distance from the terminals. This should be
done in the early part of the season. Then when we get severe winter weather

~ move the wheat on the short hauls. This will greatly assist us in transporting
‘the wheat and increase railroad receipts. Then again don’t start out by feeling

the farmers with prices at $1.75 per bus; $2.50 per bus. will be more in line.
And to avoid congestion in the early season if the price was say $2.45 up to

~ the first of Feb. then $2.50 up first of May, and $2.55 after that date this

will encourage farmers to hold their wheat and avoid paying storage charges
to the elevators from time to time. Now I wish to ask you who has the appoint-
ing of the Wheat Board, I have already written you we are entitled to more

- farmers on the wheat board. I feel I am qualified to be a member of that board

but only ask for it and expect to get it on my merits without any special efforts
or favours from any one. And in closing, I wish to say some parties are
great fear that in paying the farmers a certain price the Govt. may be at a
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heavy loss. Even if this should happen it will come far short of replacing our
loss we have suffered by the Govt. marketing our wheat the past three years,
and money paid to the farmers will not be lost. The farmers have made this
country what it is, in other words they blazed the trail and paved the way and
should vou in this way cut a lemon with the farmers it is the first time in the
history of the nation it has ever been done.

Yours truly,
(Sgd.) ROBERT WHITESIDE.

Jury 17, 1920.
Roserr WHITESIDE, Esq.,

Dumblane, Sask.

Dear Mr. WaiTeswe,—I have yours of the 10th and before you receive
this you will have learned that under conditions as they appear at the present
time, the Government has decided to decontrol the marketing of grain in Canada,
reserving of course, the right to bring into force the Enabling Act, if it shall, in
its opinion hereafter become necessary.

In the reversion in the United States of free marketing methods and the
bettered conditions of transport and credits in Europe, there seemed to be no
reasons at the present for continuing the operations of the Wheat Board, and
the farmers will be allowed to make their sales on the open and unrestricted
market.

In answer to your further enquiries, the Wheat Board was appointed last
year, as you will understand, by the Government and the Government will
also be the appointing power if the Wheat Board should later be called into
existence and in that case due consideration would be given to the representa-
tions of the different interests involved as was given last year and which, last
year, resulted in the appointment of a Board which, as it appears, has given
general satisfaction.

I note that you are of the opinion that the farmers, have on the whole,
suffered loss by the system of marketing during the last three years. Now that
control has been taken away, you will, at least, not have that charge to make,
a charge which, from my own experience, has no foundation. I should say that
the farmers have been preserved from very heavy losses because of the inter-
vention of the Government and the provision of finances for the steady market-
ing at the best obtainable prices of the farmers’ products.

Yours very truly,
(Sgd.) GEORGE E. FOSTER.

Juvy, 27, 1920,
Roeerr WaiTESIDE, Esq.,

Dumblane, Sask.

Dear Si,—Your letter of the 21st has been duly received, but as Sir George
Foster is takin

ster is g a few holidays, I shall be obliged to await his return before
bringing it to his attention.

Yours faithfully,

Private Secretary.
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Birsay, July 21st, 1920.
Hon, Sir Georce FosTER,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I have just learner by reading an article in the press, that you
have ignored the desire of the farmers in asking that our Federal Government
to market this year’s wheat crop and have catered to the lobbyists of the grain
exchange that have been hanging around Ottawa for the past three months.
Well I am very glad to say what you failed in, Providence has come to our
aid only in another way. The hot dry weather and scorching winds the past
two weeks has cut the yield of grain in Western Canada fully forty to sixty
per cent, so the amount of grain there will be to market will not in any way
overload the market.

Now in regard to that clause you have enacted concerning our Federal
Govt. watching the marketing the marketing of our wheat. There is not any
of the farmers have any desire nor do they ever expect to reap any benefit from
your watchful, waiting.

So I want to say to you frankly but kindly that I can vouch for the vast
majority of farmers, and our desire is for you and our Federal Govt. to keep
your hands off. It was not the good intention of our Federal Govt. to benefit
the farmers in any way when they took control of marketing our wheat three
years ago, and after turning down our proposition to market our wheat this
year, we certainly have not any more faith in you.

I wish to thank you however, for the education we have received though
it costs us millions of dollars, we can now arrange to market our wheat, and
do not need any further assistance from our Federal Govt.

Yours truly,
(Sgd.) ROBERT WHITESIDE.

Birsay, April 4, 1921.

Hon. Stk GeEORGE E. FoOSTER,
Ottawa.

DEear Sir,—I have had considerable correspondence with you in the past
year concerning the manner in which our Govt. marketed our wheat in 1917 &
1918 and now I understand there is to be an investigation of our grain trade.
Well I consider it would be quite in order to investigate the manner in which
our Govt. handled our wheat crop in the past three years, I am still of the opin-
~ ion that we have been swindled out of millions of dollars. I am desirous to know
how much was turned in to the Consolidated Funds of the Dominion Treasury
from the sale of our wheat in 1917 & 1918. I notice you are having some diffi-
culty in securing mento investigate the grain trade, well I suggest that at least
three farmers be appointed to that commission. I feel sure that we can make as
thorough an investigation as men from the grain trade or a judge from the
bench, I have given the grain a careful study for the past four years and I am
not afraid to tackle the job, and I hope this is not a fake job on the part of the
Govt. I trust they are not making a pretense to just merely have peace prevail
among the farmers.

Yours truly,

ROBERT WHITESIDE.

‘
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ApriL 19, 1921,
RoserTr WHITESIDE, Esq.,
Birsay, Sask.

Dear Sir,—Yours of April 4th has been duly received.

You will have noticed that the membership of the Commission to investi-
gate the handling of grain has been completed and I hope will be at work in a
short time.

The amount turned into the consolidated Revenue Fund by the Board of
Grain Supervisors was $428,781.94.

The Wheat Board has not yet completed its accounts but it is probable that
there will be a small surplus to be gathered in to the Treasury when all accounts
will have been adjusted.

I notice that you will hold to your suspicions that the farmers have been
swindled out of millions of dollars by reason of the operations of the two Boards
mentioned above. I am afraid that it is not possible for me to do, more than I
have already done to produce a contrary impression. It is very hard to deal
with suspicions in people’s minds which have no solid basis of fact upon which
to found themselves. It would be different in dealing with a conclusion which
had been arrived at from a certain basis of facts and conditions.

Yours very truly,

Birsay, Sask., July 16, 1921.
Hon. GeorGe FoSTER,
Ottawa.

Dgear Sir,—I desire to write you in regard to the grain Commission recently
appointed by our Federal Government. I have read many articles on this ques-
tion and wish to express my opinion thus:

Our Federal Government disolved our Wheat Board and allowed open
markets to prevail with this understanding that they would watch the marketing
system and take control of wheat marketing if they found it necessary. Now
under their guard of watchfullness they stood silent and allowed prices to de-
cline far below the cost of production and wholly ignored the request of the
people to reestablish the wheat board and made comments time and again that
there was no cause for such action. I ask your honourable Government, for
what reason should a commission be appointed now to investigate the grain
trade? Why go back so far and disturb the dead to get information? If they
desire to place all the facts before the people let them investigate the marketing
of grain under government control in 1917-18-19. When wheat was selling at
$2.60 in the open market in 1917 why should our government take control and
pay the farmers $2.26 and sell it in the open markets of the world at the prevailing
prices from time to time and after deducting the operating expenses the balance
of the receipts were turned into the consolidated funds of the Dominion trea-
sury? Why should we sell our wheat to the foreign countries at a sacrifice when
we were at war ourselves and in the face of the prevailing high prices of every-
thing else? 1 comsider that this has been the biggest farce that has ever been
attempted by our government. 3

Now I have taken notice of all that has happened and the only grievance
that I can lay before the grain trade is the fact that the farmers were forced
to sell their wheat in a short space of time that was caused by the action of our
banks. Had the banks not pressed the farmers for their loans there would have
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been sufficient wheat held back to have kept the market bare of cash wheat and
the large sales of future wheat would have forced the prices up of course. Now
while the wheat was in the hands of the farmers it made no difference to the
bank whether the money was loaned to the grain dealers or to the farmers.

Had our Government desired any investigation let them investigate the
banks of Canada, which is the root of all our grievances. I have written the
Royal Commission the position the farmers were placed in by the banks.

" Any time we want an investigation of the United Grain Growers the stock
holders can demand that. No doubt there were evil practices in the grain trade
in the past as was also the case under Government control, but we can gain
nothing by an investigation into that now. This has caused a great deal of
suspicion among the farmers and I have therefore undertaken to write this. I
think the United Grain Growers was justified in asking for an injunction and
I trust any commission acting in fairness will be treated with courtesy by that
Company.

Yours sincerely,

ROBERT WHITESIDE.

P.S.—Please note the reports of the leading banks and note the increase of
business they are doing in foreign countries compared with what they are doing
in Canada why should there be a depression of business in Canada when the
value of our products in 1920 was greater than in 1919 by some two hundred and
fifty million dollars and that was taking in the decline in prices. Investigate
our chartered banks. Why should provinces like Ontario and Manitoba adopt
the system of rural credit at this time. PR

July 25, 1921.

Roserr WHITESIDE, Esq.,
Birsay, Sask.

Dear Mr. WHiTesoE,—] have yours of the 16th which I have read. It
traverses largely ground which you have covered in your previous letters, to
several of which I have replied at length.

I do not see, therefore, that much will be gained by going over the same

ground.
Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) GEORGE E, FOSTER.

T N e e ————
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS e
‘ 4. ,

House or CoMMONS, , 't;‘w

TuURsDAY, May 28, 1931. ‘,’

The committee came to order at 11 o’clock, a.m., Mr. Senn in the chair. ;::'
.“. r

Members present: Messrs. Barber, Bertrand, Blair, Boulanger, Bowen,

Boyes, Brown, Burns, Campbell, Carmichael, Cayley, Coote, Duguay, Gobeil,
Loucks, Lucas, MeGillis, McPhee, Mullins, Pickel, Rowe, Senn, Shaver. Sproule, =

Stirling, Swanson, Taylor, Thompson, Totzke, Tummon, Vallance, Weese, Willis,
Young. s e

The chairman read the Order of Reference and informed the committee
that the Parliamentary Returns Nos. 147 and 147A in the Order of Reference
referred to, consisted exclusively of correspondence between Robert Whiteside
and Sir George E. Foster (the Minister of Trade and Commerce) respecting
the actions of the Board of Grain Supervisors, the Canadian Wheat Board and

the Government relative to the handling of the wheat erop of the years, 1917,
1918 and 1919.

Discussion took place as to the scope of the Order of Reference and the =
method of proceedure to be followed. Fet S

Upon motion the chairman was instructed to report to the House recom- -

mending that the committee be empowered to print its proceedings and evidence
irom day to day. \

The Hon. Mr. Stevens appeared and by leave of the committee made a ,.._

statement relative to the subject matter under consideration and filed several
documents relating thereto.

Mr. H. Tooley of Winnipeg, formerly Secretary of the Board of Gmi_u_‘f
Supervisors and the Canadian Wheat Board, appeared as a voluntary witness,
- gave evidence and was discharged. '3 i

The question of printing the day’s proceedings and evidence was Ieftm.
- abeyance, the evidence being largely documentary amd the documents being

filed and in the office of the Clerk for the convenience of members desiring to
peruse same. :

After discussion as to further action of the committee, upon motion the
committee adjourned till Thursday, June 4th, 1931. '

A. A FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

=
>
Soent
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SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE
House oF Commons,
- TaurspaY, June 4, 1931.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization came to
order at 11 o'clock, a.m., Mr. Senn presiding.

g Members present : Messrs. Barber, Bertrand, Blair, Bouchard, Bowen, Boyes,

- Brown, Burns, Campbell, Carmichael, Cayley, Donnelly, Duguay, Gobeil,

~ Loucks, Lucas, MeGillis, Motherwell, Perley, Pickel, Sauvé, Senn, Shaver, Stir-
“ling, Swanson, Taylor, Totzke, Tummon, Vallance, Weese, Willis.

The Hon. Mr. Stevens, Minister of Trade and Commerce was in attendance.

Discussion took place as to the alleged incompleteness of the minutes of
-evidence of the meeting of May 28th, whereupon the chairman read the Rule
requiring the committee reporters to confine their notes to the evidence adduced
~and prohibiting the reporting of discussion.

It was decided that the minutes of evidence but not the documentary
evidence filed should be printed from day to day for the use of the committee
- members, ¥

~ The chairman informed the committee, that with the assistance of the
7 clerk he had prepared a digest of the evidence submitted at the last meeting,
~ with certain conclusions derived therefrom, to form the basis of a report for
~ consideration of the committee. The draft referred to was then read and copies
il distfibutoﬁd.

: After discussion, Mr. Carmichael, seconded by Mr. Perley, moved that
~ a report in the terms of the document aforesaid, be adopted.

; Mr, Willis moved, seconded by Mr. Loucks, in amendment thereto that
~the report with the addition of the following clause, be the report of the com-
~ mittee, namely:—
. “The committee is of the opinion that the wheat production of Canada
the periods referred to in the reference, was handled in the best interests
the producer, and that no complaint can be offered of the operaticn of the
Bond of Grain Supervisors or the Wheat Board as to the manner in which they
their duty, and that there are no grounds for the complaints con-
v tnned in the letters of. Mr. Whiteside as laid before the committee.”

The motion by way of amendment being put by the Chair, the same by
- consent of the committee was withdrawn.

The main motion being put by the Chair was withdrawn, by consent of
,ﬂ\e committee.

oY On motion of Mr. Swanson the committee agreed to call as witnesses,
Mensrs Robert Whiteside, James Stewart and H. C. Beatty.

) Hon, Mr, Stevens informed the committee that he was taking to
ascertain, if possible, the dates of the alleged period when wheat was being
_ iﬁord on the open market, but as yet had not received any definite, xnformatmn.




Mr. Stevens then filed a memorandum, dated June 4th, 1931, addressed to hiﬁ" '.‘-A :
by the Acting Deputy Minister of Trade and Commerce in respect thereto, li-»A
follows:— y

To Hon. H. H. STEVENS.
Re Board of Grain Supervisors

1 just got in touch with Mr. Tooley. Although he has had two meeﬁnp
he has been unable to ascertain the dates under discussion. The information
obtained is to the effect that it was only a matter of a few days, probably
three or four. He is having another meeting this afternoon and will report by
wire if anything develops of interest to the committee in this respect.

J. G. PARMELEE,
Acting Deputy Mmuter L2

Mr. Donnelly produced and B16d with the Gommitias a letter addressed to
him by H. C. Beatty of Port»Dalhoume, Ont., dated May 16th, 1931. '

The comnnt;bee then adjourned at the call of the chair.

"8

A. AFRASER,

¥ur f
2
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3
House or CoMmMONS, B
THuUrspAY, May 28, 1931. s

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met.at s
11 o'clock am., Thursday, May 28, 1931, Mr. Senn in the Chair, respecting 3
Order of Reference of May 26, 1931:— S
That_matters referred to in Return Nos. 147-147A, be referred to  ~

the said Committee with instructions to examine such records as may
by the Committee be deemed necessary, and to hear such witnesses as

it may desire, and call for such papers in connection therewith, and to
report to the House. A

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Gentlemen, let me make it perfectly clear to the com-
mittee at the outset that there is not the slightest desire to curb the investigation, ;
but I do want the committee to be seized of the major facts of the case, and 3
_then in their judgment to decide whether they are going to put the country

and parliament to a lot of expense which, possibly, would be unnecessary. ;
may say this, that the government has but one desire, or perhaps I should say
two, first, that, as far as possible, the expense be kept down to a minimum and,
secondly, that the widest latitude should be given to satisfy any reasonable
requests in the matter,

Another point I would like to make at the outset is this: Reference has
been made to examination of records. Well, 1 may tell the committee very
frankly that if they want to examine records we can give them, I am told,
some tons of them; but I ask the committee, in the light of the final statement =
which can be referred to and will be referred to, whether or not it is desirable
to go back through original documents simply for the purpose of verifying
what is presented or will be presented in the form of final records. Now, there
are two divisions to this matter. One is the Board of Grain Supervisors, the =
other is the Wheat Board. The Board of Grain Supervisors were appointed in
1917 and consisted of certain gentlemen, and 1 will read their names for the
sake of the records: Dr. Robert Magill, H. W. Wood, Samuel K. Rathwell,
Thomas A. Crerar, William L. Best, John Charles Gage, William R. Bawlf,
William A. Matheson, Lionel Clarke, Joseph Ainey and James Stewart. Dr. =
Robert Magill was the Chairman. B

Now, in the course of my remarks there are certain documents that can
be filed for reference with the committee, and placed at your disposal. Might
1 say this: certain facts I think ought to be considered by the committee very
briefly. The Board of Grain Supervisors did not buy or sell wheat or flour;
they simply supervised, laid down regulations as to how the trade should be
carried, and the trade was actually carried on by those in the business. So
that at once you can dismiss from your mind the question of whether the Board
of Grain Supervisors as such made or lost money in the wheat business. Their
whole financial transactions are incorporated in their statement audited by
George A. Touche and Company, which statement T referred to in the House of
Commons, and a copy of which 1 have in my hand now. “ The Board of Grain
Supervisors for Canada Report and Statements of Receipts and Disbursements
for the Crop-Years 1917-1918 and 1918-1919, George A. Touche and Company
with which is amalgamated VYebb, Read and Company, Winnipeg.” It gives a
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complete statement of their financial affairs. I shall file this with the commit-
tee, but I shall refer briefly to the combined statement of receipts and dis-
' bursements. It will dnly take me a moment and it will make the situation
- clear as far as their financial transactions are concerned. Their total receipts
.~ consisted of $10,478,259.02. These receipts were made up in this way. They
~ assessed export grain sold to the Wheat Export Company four cents a bushel
- for the first year, and local grain two cents a bushel that year. .They made
~ a surplus in that way, and the second year they assessed the Wheat Export
. Company two cents a bushel. That gave them the revenue to which I have
= referred, ten million dollars in round figures. The disbursements included no
- salaries whatever. I wish that point emphasized. This board whose names
1 have read, acted without salary. It was a public service, and as such I think,
- ought to be appreciated. Their disbursements consisted of travelling expenses,
wages and salaries to the staff and other incidentals, and the paying of carrying
charges on grain that was handled or passed through their control. The total
disbursements for carrying charges and sundry claims were $7,357,328.88, and
the total disbursement for administration expenses were $183,727.37. Now
then, the surplus was the difference between the seven and a half millions,
By - rwg‘)ly, and the ten and a half millions. They refunded to the Wheat Export
~ Company, two and a half million dollars. These four cents a bushel were taken
' from the Wheat Export Company in addition to the price paid to farmers.
The price paid farmers was fixed at a given point by Orders in Council, which
will be placed before you later. The four cents a bushel was assessed from
- the Export Company, and was not taken out of the price paid to the farmers.
~ They returned to them two and a half million dollars of the excess. They
. remitted to the Receiver General $428,781.94, which is now in the hands of the
~ Receiver General. They refunded to the Department of Trade and Commerce
- $7,560.53, which the Department of Trade and Commerce loaned them to open
- operations when they started; and there was a small sum left with the Royal
Bank for incidental expenses, $860.30.

I shall file this statement, the details of which any of you may examine;
~ but that is the final statement of the Board of Grain Supervisors, and comprises
~ all of their financial activities in connection with their work. I shall leave to
- Mr. Tooley to submit to you the modus operandi, if I may so call it. Any
- questions you wish to ask he will be willing to answer, as far as he is able
- to do so. His position was secretary.

We have here the Orders in Council passed by the committee of the Privy
~ Council—or at least, the orders of the Board of Grain Supervisors, and we also
~_have the orders of the Wheat Board. There seems to be no question about the
Canadian Wheat Board.

Mr. Brown: None whatever.

! Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I do not think so. I may say virtually all of the
~ observations made by the hon. member from Lisgar, and my hon. friends who
discussed this, have been verified by a perusal of the records. I would like to
refer to one or two things which will clear up in the minds of some of the hon.
~ members, the matter of those participating certificates, and how it now stands.
~ That point might be cleared up, and we can make a very clear statement of

it

Mr. TumMmon: In regard to the auditor’s statement there?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: The only one that came into the hands of the
2 Receiver General. I shall refer to that in a moment.

: - Mr. Tavror: May I ask the Minister who are the personnel of the Export-
_ing company? ;
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Hon. Mr. Stevens: The Wheat Exporting Company consisted of, if I
remember correctly, Stoddard, and a group of prominent men appointed .by
the British government. They represented the allies, acting with the British
government’s appointee. In other words, the Wheat Export Company was the
Financial company with headquarters in New York, representing the Allies,
the United States, and Canada. They had a sub-office in Winnipeg.

Mr. Young: Who was in charge of the sub-office in Winnipeg?

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: James Stewart.

Mr. Young: Was he acting alone, or did he have a staff with him?

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I do not think he had a large staff of workers; I do
not think he had any board. He was associated of course, with those people,
but Stoddard, 1 imagine, is the head man of the Wheat Export Company, the
head practical man. ‘

It must be clearly borne in mind that the Wheat Export Company did not,
in any sense, come under the government of Canada, or the government of
the United States; they were representing the governments of Great Britain and
the Allies.

Now, in 1927 an order in council was passed, winding up the activities
of the Wheat board. 1 am reading this so that the committee will be seized
of this fact, that this business was brought to a conclusion in an orderly fashion,
if T might so state.

Certified to be a true copy of a Minute of a Meeting of the Com-
mittee of the Privy Council, approved by His Excellency the Governor
General on the 15th March, 1927.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them the
report, dated 9th March, 1927, from the Minister of Trade and Com-
merce, stating that it now appears expedient to finally wind up the
Canadian Wheat Board which was brought into existence by an order
in couneil of the 31st July, 1919 (P.C. 1589).

The Minister observes that the Board was given power to take
delivery of wheat, make advances to the producers, to store, transport
and sell such wheat, fix prices thereon, ete., etc., in brief, to control the
wheat and flour trade. Participation Certificates were issued to the
producers of wheat, and the holders of these Certificates were to receive
at the end of the season a pro rata share (based upon the number of
bushels stated in the Certificates), of all moneys remaining in.the hands
of the Board received in payment of wheat delivered to and sold by the
Board after deducting expenses. !

The Canadian Wheat Board continued in operation until early in
1921, when it rendered its final report and deposited to the eredit of y
the government the sum of $560,000 in favour of the Receiver General—

That is the point I wish to refer to, that $560,000 were paid to the
Receiver General and distributed pro rata among the provinces. A further sum
of $173,000 was held, and is still held—when I say “held,” it is in the consoli-
dated fund in the office of the Receiver General, so that the picture is this:
the Board of Grain Supervisors turned into the consolidated fund $428,000 :
in round figures. The Wheat Board turned in $560,000, which was distributed
among the provinees. There still remains another $175,000 in the hands of
the government. That is all of the money. There is one other point to which
I should like to draw your attention, and I shall read you letters bearing
further upon that; that the government of the day kept up the records in the
office to try and pay every conceivable certificate that was entitled to considera-
tion for five years after the last one was issued. And it cost them $5,000 a
year to keep up a staff, and the last year referred to here only $1,300 was
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presented. Now, the point I wish to make, gentlemen, is this, a person comes
along with an interim receipt, or a certificate that he has found. The clerks
have to check back through hundreds of thousands of documents to find out
_ whether or not a duplicate had been issued, because perhaps it had been stolen
or perhaps there iz a duplicate issued, or this one may be honestly held, or it
may not be. It may have been acquired in a horse trade, so that in order to
r determine whether it was justifiable to pay it or not, the clerks had to check
- their records, hence the expense entailed in following it up. Now, the opera-
- tions of the Wheat Board were finally wound up, and the payment of par-
y ticipating certificates ended in September, 1927, by an order in council of the -
~ government of the day.
Now, I have one further point I wish to make, and it is this: the question
- has been raised, and quite properly, inasmuch as the discussion has been opened
- up, what about any certificates that may come to light. I will give you an
e illustration of this, because the answer given by the department, not since I have
- been in control, but in 1919, is I think, a very excellent answer, and I present it
- to this committee, not as my own opinion, but as the very considered view of
~ trained officers of the Department of Trade and Commerce, having to do with
- this matter.
: It appears that Mr. Motherwell and Mr. Young, a former member from

~ BSaskatoon, presented a participation certificate, or urged that a participation
~ certificate that had been presented should receive consideration. I read this
- answer so that you may have in a concise form before you the considered view of
~ this case. Every consideration was given to this matter and this is the answer.
This is a letter addressed to Mr. Motherwell, Minister of Agriculture, Septem-
- ber 4th, 1929, file No. 24181, with the heading “Wheat Participation Certificates
‘Mr. W. R. Patterson.”

- Dear Mr. MOTHFRWELL:

In Mr. Maleolm’s absence I beg to acknowledge the receipt of your
letter of August 31st with regard to participation certificates held by Mr.
W. R. Patterson. I shall be glad to bring your communication to Mr.
Malcolm’s attention immediately on his return to Ottawa, but may I
state that the position is an exceedingly difficult one. In advance, there-

) gore, of any action by Mr. Malcolm I thought it well to let you have the

% acts.,
. . Mr. Patterson held Certificate No. 375584 for 848 bushels, issued
on December 9th, 1919. The interim payment on this was 30 cents, or
$254.40 and the final payment 18 cents, or $152.64, making a total of
$407.04. These certificates stated on the face that they were to be
presented on or before December 31st, 1920, The government, however,
continued payment of the Participation Certificates as many thousands
-3 were outstanding; but the time came when almost eight years had
B! elapsed since Participation Certificates were first issued, and for the
e fiscal year ended March 31, 1927, Certificates amounting to only $1,365
were presented and paid, whereas it was costing over $5,000 a year

~ to maintain a staff familiar with the records to certify to the Certificates

g and authorize payment thereof. There was a tremendous lot of book-
g keeping involved as all certificates had to be checked before payment
- was made, and in many cases farmers claimed that their certificates
~ had been lost for which duplicates were issued and then the original
e certificates turned up for payment. .

‘ l 2 The question of the outstanding Participation Certificates was given

Eh. ~ wide publicity in the press, and discussed in Parliament, and finally an
S order-in-council was passed on March 15, 1927, limiting the time within
; which the Certificates would be honoured till the first September, 1927.
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Again the matter was referred to throughout the western press, result-
ing in a large number of certificates being presented and paid. With
the passage of that Order-in-Council however, all money in the hands
of the Wheat Board were turned into the Consolidated Revenue Fund.
A great many certificates have been refused payment since; in fact
there are still outstanding $195,000 worth of Participation Certificates.

It would take a special vote of parliament to make an appropria-
tion to meet payment on Mr. Patterson’s certificate, but that, I need
not point out, would create a most embarrassing situation throughout
the west if all the others that were presented were not paid. Many
of these may have been destroyed since the owners were officially in-
formed that payment of Participation Certificates had ceased. To con-
tinue payment of Certificates would necessitate re-establishing an office
and the examination of nearly twenty tons of records. Mr. Tooley of
Winnipeg, who was the Secretary of the Wheat Board, told me once
in conversation that at times it took several days, and in fact weeks to
certify to some of the Participation Certificates, especially where legal
technicalities were involved, or where they had changed hands two or
three times before being presented. To illustrate some of the difficul-
ties involved I may quote from a letter received from the Secretary of
the Canadian Wheat Board dated April 20th, 1926:

It is true that very few payments have been made on Participation
Certificates within the last year, and judging from that position alone,
it would seem extravagant to continue this office here. However, for
each payment actually made I receive four or five claims which are
abortive, and so that you may understand how such contingencies
arise I herewith give you a few details.

A Certificate before becoming a negotiable document requires to
be registered with the Board. Every farmer, however, was entitled to
receive a Certificate as a protection to him, between the time his wheat
was delivered to the Board, through the Board’s Licensees, and the
delivery to him of a registered Certificate, he was given a receipt form.
These receipt forms required to be surrendered by the farmer when he
received his Certificate, but unfortunately in lots of cases he failed to
do =0, having lost or mislaid it, and duplicate receipts were therefore
issued. Farmers are still unearthing receipt forms and forwarding them
here in the hope they may be of value.

_Other farmers, when the time for payment on the Certificates
arrived, claimed to have had their Certificates destroyed by fire or other-
wise lost, and in these cases the Board issued duplicate Certificates, taking
bonds from the farmers as a protection against the original being
negotiated. In a number of instances I am still receiving Certificates
against which duplicates had been issued and payments made. Such
receipt fqrms and Certificates are, of course, of no value, but each case
requires investigation. 4

Other farmers, while they have no documentary evidence, claim to
have delivered wheat to the Board and to have received no payment on
Paxl'tllcx_paj;non_Certiﬁcates, and as such elaims may be quite genuine, each
claim is investigated and reported upon.

Unless the Certifieate itself is produced, search requires to be made
through the Licensees Registers, the Certificate Registers, and the lists
of Requisitions submitted by the Licensees with the Certificates for regis=

‘tration. There are four Licensees Registers, twenty Participation Certifi-
cate Registers containing in the aggregate over 900,000 Certificates, and
the requisition forms number about 80,000. ... prhar
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10,000 which have never been claimed.by farmers and cheques against
Participation Certificates still outstanding.

It would apparently, therefore, be a hopeless task to attempt to
re-open the organization with a new staff knowing nothing of the records
for the purpose of continuing payment on Participation Certificates.”

I have read this probably too rapidly, but I am sure the committee will
- gather from this the tremendously complex nature of trying to run down a

= Participation Certificate that may turn up to-day, ten or twelve years after it

was issued, and the necessity, in justice to the country, and to other individuals
to demonstrate actually that the certificate is a genuine one and entitled to con-
sideration. It is almost a hopeless task; hence you will see from this letter the
wisdom of the government of the day in bringing the matter to a finality by
passing the order-in-council, which I read to you a moment ago.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I have gone hurriedly over just a few of those docu-
ments. If the committee desires them, there are files which I have unearthed
since the discussion arose, and books and records, which, due to the matter having
been finally brought to a conclusion, officers of my department did not realize
were available, except the records which I referred to in the House. We have
unearthed files, and I have gone through them, spent hours going through them,
and I want to tell the committee very candidly I could find nothing that I could
bring before the committee that is of interest, or that would warrant in the
?i&htest degree the statements made or inuendos contained in Mr. Whiteside’s
etter.

Now, I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, to the committee, that, before you put
the government or the country to more expense in this matter, if they are not
satisfied with what I have presented and what Mr. Tooley will be able to present
in a moment, a sub-committee might be instructed to examine the records, or
something of that kind. But I ask the committee, before they start on an
‘objectless search—I would say objectless, because I assume there are no charges,
by wandering through those records with the hope of finding some help, I must

‘had the files examined, but.our examination of the records, as far as we have
been able to go into them in the limited time we have had, has disclosed to us
nothing; and I think the reading of those final records will give to you a pretty
- complete idea of the business like manner in which the affairs were handled.
Here is a statement of all the orders-in-council and board regulations, which
are here for your perusal.
I should like to emphasize what I have already stated regarding Mr.
Tooley. He has come here as an act of courtesy and at my personal request;
he did so at great inconvenience to himself. He has his own business affairs; he
~is head of a business and it means a great inconvenience and loss to him to
come here. What he is doing, he is doing gratuitously for the committee. I
hope the committee will receive him in that spirit and he has expressed to me
a desire to get away as quickly as he can. I shall, Mr. Chairman, now ask
~ that Mr. Tooley might be heard, and I think perhaps the most useful thing is,
~if there are any questions pertaining to the matter, Mr. Tooley will be glad to
answer them.
i Mr. Varrance:—Before Mr. Tooley addresses the committee, may I point
- out to the committee that I know quite a number of members of this committee
~ who have become confused in their mind, and think that there were two different
organizations that dealt with the 1916, 1917, 1918, and 1919 erops. What was done
 with the 1917 and 1918 crops by the Board of Grain Supervisors is what we
~ are interested in, and I would suggest to Mr. Tooley that as far as the 1919
- Wheat Board report, he take it as read.
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Our records further include Participation Certificates numbering over.

> say is, to my mind, going to be very costly and more or less useless. We have.
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The CuamrMAN: Is it the pleasure of the committee to hear Mr. Tooley?

Mr. Browx: I would suggest Mr. Tooley be allowed to make his statement,
and be questioned later.

Mr. H. TooLEy, called.

The Wir~ess: I shall deal with the Board of Grain Supervisors for Canada,
and leave the Canadian Wheat Board entirely alone at the present time.

The Board of Grain Supervisors for Canada was appointed under order-in-
council dated June 11, 1917. They handled the 1917-1918 crop, and the 1918-
1919 crop. During the crop year 1917-18, the Board of Grain Supervisors
fixed the price of number one Manitoba Northern wheat on a basis of $2.21 per
bushel in store public terminal elevator at Fort William or Port Arthur, and also
fixed lower grades on a relative spread basis. During the erop year 1918-1919,
the price was fixed on the same basis at $2.24} cents per bushel.

The above were the fixed prices paid to the producer for his wheat no matter
when delivered during the crop years. designated. ;

The Board, during the crop year 1917-18 collected a sum of two cents
to two and a half cents per bushel on all wheat ground by flour mills and four
cents per bushel on all wheat exported from Canada. For the crop year
1918-19 three cents per bushel was collected on both wheat ground by mills and
on wheat exported from Canada. The sum of $10,320,151.06 was collected under
these assessments and after payment of carrying charges on wheat stored in
country elevators and for eastern mills stored during the closed season of navi-
gation and the administration expenses of the Board, there was left a surplus
of the two years combined of $428 781.94 which was remitted to the Receiver
General for Canada. That was the total surplus acerued from the carrying
charges, which was turned over to the Receiver General.

During the erop years 1917-1918, and 1918-1919, the Board prohibited all
exports of wheat from Canada, excepting under licence of the Board. Licences
were only given to producers residing elose to the international boundary line
where the United States market was closer than the Canadian.

All the wheat for the crop years referred to, exported from Canada, was made
through the Wheat Export Company. The Wheat Export Company were the
representatives of the British government, and performed a function of sole
exporter of wheat from the Dominion to the United Kingdom, France and Italy.
The Wheat Export Company was simply one of many grain purchasing agencies,
which the British government established in every accessible grain exportin
country throughout the world during the war, and its head was the Roya
Commission of Wheat Supplies in London, England. The Board of Grain Super-
visors assembled and distributed wheat within the Canadian territory through

the regular grain trade channels and through the wheat export company, taking
charge of the exportable surpluses of the crops of this country that were

marketed during the two seasons of 1917-18. During these two years the price

of wheat in Canada, as in the United States, was fixed on the guarantee of the
Federal Government. The Wheat Export Company took delivery of the wheat

in store Fort, William at the fixed prices of the Board and assumed all charges
from them on until the wheat was delivered at sea-board ports. The producers

received the full amount as designated by the fixed prices of the Board, the
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assessments, as stated, having been collected from the flour mills and the Wheat

Export Company. ,

As the Wheat Export Company were the purchasing agents for the British
and Allied Governments as far as the Board of Grain Supervisors were con-
cerned, it was assumed they made no profits out of the transactions but turned

the wheat over to the governments at the fixed prices of the Board plus trans-

portation costs and charges.
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I think it well to point out that during the years covered by the operations
of the Board of Grain Supervisors, ocean transportation was a very large factor
~ in the marketing of grain and it was only through the British Admiralty supply-
. ing vessels at the sea-board that Canada was able to ship. Australia, during the
- same period, had wheat to sell, but owing to distance and transportation risks,
- were heavily handicapped and considerable Australian wheat during the period
S was severely damaged by weevil before the British Government could supply
~ vessels to move same.
3 The Board of Grain Supervisors made no profit on the wheat handled during
- the years of its operation and as previously stated, the surplus over carrying
A ::. charges collected amounting to $428,781.94 was turned over to the Receiver
General of Canada. No moneys were turned over by the Board of Grain
rvisors for Canada to the Canadian Wheat Board. The Wheat Board
- followed. I do not know, gentlemen, whether that covers the information you
- want. If not, I will endeavour to answer your questions.

Mr. Browx: If Mr. Tooley is through making his statement, I would like
to ask him in régard to the 1916 crop. What became of that part of the 1916

3 only gradually that I have been able to get a proper effect of the matter in my
~  mind, but my recolletion is that the government commandeered a part of the
.~ 1916 crop. Then, later, I think the Board of Grain Supervisors was established
~on the 11th June?

e Mr. Toorey: The 11th of June.

{ Mr. BrownN: This wheat was fixed then at the price of $2.40 a bushel which
I find was part of the 1916 crop. Now, is that included in the records you have
~ given us? Here is the point I want to make in the matter: Mr. Whiteside has
‘given certain figures touching the fiscal vear of 1918, but he does not take into
account—and I think he should have taken into account—the fact that that
. wheat was bought, at least part of it was bought at a higher price than $2.21, the
. amount paid to the farmer. Will you explain that matter with regard to that
~ part of the 1916 crop which was handled under government supervision?

”'""f - Mr. TooLey: Well, I will read an extract from the report of the Chairman
- of the Board, Dr. Magill. .

~ Mr. Vauuance: Before you answer Mr. Brown, just when did you become
‘Secretary—on June 11th?
~ Mr. TooLey: No, I was not the first Secretary of the Board of Grain Super-

Mr. VaLraxce: Would the Secretary who preceded you have any knowl-
e as to the question Mr. Brown is asking? Would the Board handle what
commandeered, or did some other body handle it prior to the bringing about.
the Board of Grain Supervisors? There are one or two points we want to
clear up, and that is one of them.

~ Hon. Mr. Stevens: It can be cleared up. I do not want to saddle Mr.
Tooley with the respensibility. I will take the responsibility for reading this if
- I may be permitted, and T will answer the question. I am now reading from a
- report of the Board of Grain Supervisors which report was written by Dr.
» %:l It is dated Winnipeg, March 17, 1920. It is an official report signed
- Dr. Magill, and it was tabled in the House, by the way, two weeks ago. :
- It was tabled for the convenience of the members. However, Dr. Magill
a very interesting statement of the whole situation. The heading is * The
_ Balance of the Crop of 1916,” and I think that is what Mr, Tooley referred to.
It is on page 3 of the report:—

P 0 N N, T PR R

*h crop that the government handled after it was taken into their hands? It is.
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Great Britain and her allies needed the whole of the balance of the e

crop of 1916, and the United States did not need any of it. The Board =

took measures, therefore, to sell the whole of the remaining exportable - _: /

surplus to the Wheat Export Company for shipment overseas. In doing et

so the Board protected such contracts as had been previously made with =

buyers in the United States, and it did not interfere with the courtesy 3 "-P ‘

custom extended to wagon-loads hauled across the boundary lire to nearby AN

American elevators. Upon the balance of wheat remaining the Board =

fixed a maximum price of $2.40 per bushel for One Northern Wheat in e |
store Fort William, and at that price, with commercial spreads for lower
grades, sold the balance of the remaining surplus of wheat to the Wheat

Export Company. : +r

Now, that is the statement of Dr. Magill. May I refer also to a statement A:‘»
to this effect, and I think this will throw light upon this point. He says:— +

This disintegration appeared dramatically in Winnipeg in the spring ol :—:

of 1917. During the previous winter months, the agents of the Allied =

Governments had bought wheat freely .. .. Np. 4.;

that is the winter of 1916-17—the winter that the Board of Grain Supervisors P - \
was appointed. + 8
. . . . bought wheat freely to be delivered in May and July. They e
bought this wheat mainly, if not altogether, from the operators of country
elevators, who as they bought wheat from the farmers from day to day, -
sold it for May and July delivery. Neither the buyers for the Allied E(.
Governments nor the elevator operators who sold the wheat were
gambling in futures. The buyers were providing to the best of their judg- =
ment for the future needs of the countries they represented, and the
sellers were securing their loans from the banks by hedging their pur- :

chases in the only way known to commercial men of providing against
risk.

Now, here comes the important point:—

These future contracts called for grades 1, 2 and 3 Northern. It
turned out that much of the wheat thus sold or hedged did not measure .
up to these contract grades. As a rule, and under normal conditions, this
presents no great difficulty, because the buyers are willing to accept lower
grades on the contracts at fair discounts. This, indeed, is a well-estab-
lished commercial practice. In the spring of 1917, however, the British
representatives intimated that they were unwilling or unable to acecept
grades at discounts, and that they would require the contract grades. This
forced the sellers to try to buy the higher grades on the open market,
with the result that the prieces of these grades went skyrocketing. As
prices soared the sellers were called for increasing sums of money, and
the limit of their eredits was soon reached. In effect the market was
cornered and a disaster upon a large scale was impending,

To avert this the Winnipeg Grain Exchange investigated the condi-
tions, found them as above, closed the market for futures, and by the
aid of the Dominion Government secured the consent of the British
authorities to a settlement along commercial lines. A

That is the point that Mr. Vallance mentions. I will repeat it:—
. . . . The Winnipeg Grain Exchange investigated the conditions, found
them as above, -closed the market for futures, and by the aid of the .

Dominion Government secured the consent of the British authorities to
a settlement along commercial lines, <N
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That is, there was a settlement and they accepted the lower grades at a
discount in place of One, Two, Three.

As a result the British accepted the lower grades of wheat on the
contracts at fair discounts, the discounts were speedily fixed and the
situation ecleared up.

Now, I think that is all the Dominion Government had to do with the
marketing of the crop that year. I am at this stage referring to Mr. Whiteside's
own figures on the matter which were referred to a moment ago. If I might
read from Mr. Whiteside's own figures, I will not read the high and the low;
I will not read it all; but I will give you his figures. I will give you the average,
and I will put the whole statement in, and it can be examined. He starts with
August, 1916. The average was $1.281; September $1.547; October $1.744;
November $1.95}; December $1.75%; January, 1917, $1.793; February $1.693;
March $1.874; April—this is where we get to the point where the market was
cornered—April $2.30; May $2.72§. That is when the farmers were delivering
their wheat and when the dealers had cornered these high grades because of
the prevalence of the tough grades in the west. April $2.30, May $2.72%; June
$2.46}, July $2.36. August, 1917, the price was held steady at $2.40. Now,
these figures of Dr. Magill taken together with Mr. Whiteside's own figures—
I am not vouching for these, but he gave us them himself, and these are the
figures upon which he intimates that he wasn’t getting a square deal, which,
1 think, makes it fair to introduce them—would indicate that because of the
shortage of high grade wheat in Western Canada in the winter and spring of
1916-17, the wheat market then being open and being free trading, there was
a corner in wheat in the spring of 1917, which was overcome by the Grain
Exchange closing its future sales, and the British Government assisting those

- involved to come to an understanding by taking the lower grades in lieu of the

higher grades. Now, that is the situation as far as the balance of the 1916
crop was concerned.

Mr. VauLance: Mr. Chairman, there is no doubt that somebody on the
floor of the House during this discussion misled the House when he made the
statement that he sold that part of the erop for $3 a bushel. Now, somebody
is wrong and somebody is right, and I am not in a position to say who. Mr.
Rogers on the floor of the House said they sold it for $3 a bushel. That was

 his own statement. He quoted, I suppose, from a memorandum he held in his

hand. We asked that that might be tabled. I do not know whether it was
tabled or not. We have the information from the Minister, that it certainly
was tabled. Mr. Totzke tried on several occasions to get hold of that, and
he could not get it. I am not blaming the Minister, nor anyone else. So far
we have not been able to get it. I am not doubting the Minister’s statement
or that of Mr. Tooléy. He says he has no knowledge of that portion of the
crop that was commandeered, but I think he will have some knowledge of the
marketing of the 1917-18 crop, and it has already been stated that the Board
of Grain Supervisors did not sell to the Export Board all the 1917-18 crop or
all of the 1918 crop. There was a period when the crop was sold on the open
market, and then again the British Government stepped in, or the Export
Board, and realized that they could take all the crop and they again stepped
in and took the crop. The government, at a certain period during the crop
year of the marketing of the 1918 crop stepped in and sold a portion of western
Canada’s wheat on the open market because of the fact that the Export Board
would not enter into an agreement to pay the fixed price. Then they found

“that they needed the wheat, and the new agreement was entered into whereby

they took the wheat at a fixed price. Probably Mr. Tooley can explain just what
they did on the open market with that portion of the wheat they sold.
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Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I think Mr. Rogers referred to what I was referring

to here, that the British Government and the Canadian Government got together

when this jam occurred in the spring of 1917, due to the cornering of the market, .

and they facilitated, to use Dr. Magill's own word w.hich I read a moment
ago—they facilitated the handling of that wheat. I think, Mr, Vallance, that
primarily is the official statement of the incident referred to.

Mr. VaLLaNce: Are you assuming that the Hon. Robert Rogers got up
in his place the other night just simply—

Hon. Mr, Stevens: Noj; but there must be an element of fairness in this
matter. Mr. Rogers undoubtedly rendered a tremendous service to western
Canada when he went to London. He was in London at the time mentioned,
coinciding with this condition in the market. That is, our people contracted

to deliver One, Two and Three, and they could not deliver it. British buyers

were afraid of the tough wheat. They even went so far as to say that they
believed tough wheat could not be shipped.

Mr. Brown: Mr. Rogers played a part only in connection with the 1916
crop.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Dr. Magill says:

To avert this, the Winnipeg Grain Exchange investigated the condi-
tions, found them as above, closed the market for futures, and by the
aid of the Dominion Government—

By the aid of the Dominion Government, the Hon. Robert Rogers “secured
the consent of the British authorities. . . .” I think it was Mr. Lloyd George,
because Mr. Rogers has told me the whole incident. . . . “to a settlement alon
commercial lines.” Now, what are commercial lines? What Dr. Magi
described in the matter I read a moment ago, that where our people could not
deliver a given grade which they had contracted to deliver the commercial
practice is to accept a lower grade at a discount. Now, the British did that.
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There was one condition which Mr. Rogers guaranteed, and that was that the oha

wheat would carry safely to the other side. He pledged the government on
that. No implementing of the pledge was ever called for, but it did make
for the successful sale of that wheat. And all of this was done on the open
market before the Dominion Government controlled the crop at all.

Mr. VaLLance: 1 would like to know who it was that sold that wheat
when it was sold on the open market, and what was the price received for
that portion that was sold on the open market.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: For what period? -

Mr. Vaurance: The 1918 crop. The export Board refused to take tl
wheat at the market price; they thought they could buy it cheaper than the
market price. We sold a certain portion of that erop. The government
stepped in then and gave a guarantee of $2.21, and then the Export Board

stepped in again and thought they could get it at $2.21, at the prevailing prices.

I want to know what they got for that portion of the erop and who sold it.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: 1 think what you refer to was at the instance of the
Wheat Board.

Mr. Varuance: No, that was before the Wheat Board ever came into

operation.

grain.
Mr. VaLrance: Somebody sold grain; who sold it? We did not.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: The Board of Grain Supervisors did not buy and sell
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Hon. Mr. Stevens: All of the grain was handled by the dealers. Dr.
Magill refers to that in his final report here. He says there were two ways:
one way was for the Board to buy; the other way was to let the trade operate.
He said that they decided to let the trade operate and not to buy at all.

Mr. Torzge: Did the Board of Grain Supervisors exercise any control
over the price that this Export Company sold the grain at. Iam speaking
with regard to the period of 1918 when the British and Allied Purchasing Com-
mission was not buying at the fixed price. Grain was sold on the open market.
Now, during that period our government had fixed the price to the farmers, and
there was a certain amount sold at that time on the open market. What I want
to know it what price was that sold at, who was it sold by, and if there was
a profit, who got the profit? If there was a deficit, who took the deficit?
Because there must have been either a profit or a deficit during that period.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: This I think will cover it:— Guaranteeing the
Price.” That is the heading of this section of Dr. Magill’s report. He says
. this: “Naming a price is one thing; it is quite another to find a purchaser who
will contract to take the article at the price fixed throughout the whole of the
twleve months. For the-crop of 1917 there was no difficulty in this respeet.
The Allies needed the whole exportable surplus wheat of Canada. They were
willing to buy the whole surplus at the price fixed, and they gave a guarantee
to that effect. In this respect wheat was in a different position from coarse
grains.” The price was fixed by the Board of Grain Supervisors. Now, that
was for 1917. Then Dr. Magill goes on:—

It was different with the crop of 1918 . . . . and I think you will
find that this will completely clear the point—No guarantee was
obtained from the representatives of the British Royal Commission with
regard to the surplus of the crop of 1918, and when the Armistice was
signed there was considerable difficulty in selling the balance of wheat
still remaining in Canada. Having, however, fixed a price for the wheat
of 1918, and having arranged for the purchase of wheat from the farmer
by the trade on that basis, a guarantee was necessary, and it was given
by the Dominion Government.

We have got it straight to that point. Fortunately the allied countries
needed the wheat, and in the end the balance of the crop of 1918 was sold at
the fixed price.

Mr. VaLuance: The balance?
Hon. Mr. Stevens: Yes.
Mr. Brow~: The balance?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Yes. The point is this: in the early part of 1918 they
operated—that is, before the close of the war—on the original Board of Grain
Supervisors system. That is, the Wheat Export Board finally took it at the
fixed price and guarantced to give that price. Then, we came to the Armistice,
and the market was open. We came to the Armistice or shortly afterwards and
the British authorities said, “No, we won't guarantee to buy it at that price,
the market may fall, the seas are open, and we may get supplies elsewhere,” and
they expected to. Dr. Magill goes on and savs this, “Canada having, however,
fixed a price was morally obliged to discharge it with the farmer,” and some one
had to guarantee it. The British authorities refused, the Dominion government

the day gave the guarantee that was necessary; that is to say, established the
price then, $2.24%. The Dominion government said, “We will give you $2.24%
for this wheat crop, no matter what happens.” Had there been a surplus on
~the world market; had there been other supplies available, the Dominion govern-
- ment would have been stuck for the loss, whatever it was. Fortunately, as Dr.
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Magill says, the allied countries needed the wheat; there was ot a surplus
elsewhere; they needed the wheat, and they took all the Canadian wheat, and
the balance of the crop year of 1918 which we have been dealing with, was sold
at the fixed price and the Doininion government was not called upon to make
up the necessary difference.

Mr. Torzge: There was a period in that year during which wheat was
being sold on the open market.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: You are quite right, but you are overlooking one thing,
gentlemen. There was a period when the British said, “No, we will not buy on
a closed market.”

Mr. Torzxe: How long was that period?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: We do not know; but it had no effect. It had no
effect; it may have been a week; it may have been two weeks. Mr. Tooley
says he thinks he can give you the information on that.

Mr. TooLey: During the period that the British government were not
taking the wheat the grain trade through the regular machinery continued to
collect this wheat under the guarantee of the Board of Grain Supervisors and
the Canadian government. Subsequently, this wheat was all turned over to
the Export Company, when the British government changed its mind.

Mr. Torzxe: It was not sold on the open market at all?
Mr. TooLey: So far as I know, no.

Mr. VaLLance: You say the Grain companies continued to take the wheat
at the guaranteed price of $2.24}; that is, guaranteed by the federal government.
Your contention is, you say, you are not positive that wheat was sold or not.
We will say it was not sold. Then, after the Allied governments stepped in
and said, “I think we will take it.” I have had a little to do with the grain
business, and I can forsee where the grain trade, even with the guarantee, would
not hold unless they had some knowledge that the allied nations were con-
sidering taking it. Now, the only point we want to clear up, or at least I do,
is how long that period was that the wheat was held or collected without the
knowledge that the allied governments were going to take it. In this memo-
randum Dr. Magill himself says that the balance of the wheat was sold—

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Fortunately, the allied countries needed the wheat.

Mr. Varrance: And the balance was sold. What became of that portion
that was not in the balance?

Mr. Torzxe: What portion of the 1918 crop was sold on the open market?
That is the point we want to clear up. 1 do not think there is any question
about the Board of Grain Supervisors operating in 1918, but we have been
informed that a certain amount of wheat was sold in the open market, and that
is what we want to clear up. Sir George Foster says in one of his letters that

a portion of the 1918 erop was sold on the open market, and until that is cleared

up, the western farmer will not be satisfied.

Mr. Varrance: You will find a letter from Sir George Foster where he
states a portion of the 1918 crop was sold on the open market, as customers
came forward, or something to that effect; that wheat was sold at different
times and at different prices. We want to know now whether we can get a
report of how much was sold, and what it was sold for, or not.

B';Ir. Torzke: Would it be possible to get the report from the Export com-
pany

Hon. Mr. Stevens: 1 submit this ta you, gentlemen, very very cameétly.
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The Wheat Export Company were the agents of the allied governments. If we
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suggest that the Wheat Export Company or the allied governments did not act
in absolute good faith with this—

Mr. Torzxe: 1 think we can get the Export company to inform us of the
period in which they were not buying at the fixed prices.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: We have no right whatever to call on them. T think
Mr. Totzke's and Mr. Vallance’s question is really completely answered, with this
possible exception, in the report rather than in actual dates and figures, If you
will read Dr. Magill’s report—and mind you, this report of Dr. Magill was
written without the slightest anticipation of his language being, shall I say,
challenged as to its precise character—it is not in the nature of a reply to any-
thing. But if you will take his language, and keep in mind this, that they start
the year with a guaranteed purchase from the British government and a fixed
price by the Canadian government, and the business is running along smoothly
through the ordinary channels of trade and the grain companies are handling
this grain; and the Armistice comes more or less unexpectedly. As a matter
of faet, reading of the official records indicated this; that Great Britain and the
Allies were preparing for the continuation of the war through 1919, and did not
. expect the Armistice until just a few days or a few weeks before it actually
came. Before anybody expected it or anticipated it, the Armistice comes like
a bolt from the blue. What is the result? Naturally, when the Armistice comes,
the markets are thrown open, the seas are free, we ecan go anywhere we please.
The markets of Russia and other countries are available, and the British, good ]
traders as they aré, said, “ Well, here. We are not going to guarantee to pay ‘
you $2.244, or whatever price you wish when we may be able to get wheat
cheaper; we are going to hold off.” And they held off. The Canadian govern-
ment recognizing the farmer was depending on them, and owing to the system
having been inaugurated said, “ We are going to pay for the rest of this crop.
This is the price we have fixed for the wheat crop, and we will take it.”  If the
market falls the Dominion government says, “ We will take the loss.” Now,
then, there was no taking over of the grain; it was just simply a continuation
- of the guarantee, and that the Dominion government would stand by the agree-
- ment they had made. Well then, while this was going on, a matter of a short
~ time, we do not exactly know how long it was, it might have been a week or
two, but a very short time, they discussed the matter, and the British came
- along and said, “ We are prepared to take your wheat, and we are prepared to
~ pay the price.”
A% Mr. Torzge: That is the whole erux of the matter, the length of that period.
- Was any wheat sold during that period?
] Hon. Mr. Stevexs: If you will just give me your attention, gentlemen, if
~ Mr. Vallance will give me his attention, I cannot give you any records for this
- reason. All our records were with the Board of Grain Supervisors. I say this,
1 ean find no record of any wheat being sold by the Board of Grain Supervisors,
‘and it is declared that they did not sell—

Mr. Varrance: That is what I want to know. I am not saying that they
did sell it, but I say somebody sold it, according to the information given by
the then Minister of Trade and Commerce, Sir George Foster.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: What was the reference, Mr. Vallance?
Mr. Vanrance: I have not got the file.

‘ Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Do not forget this, if you take Mr. Whiteside’s
~ letter and Sir George’s—-I think that Sir GGeorge Foster deserves tribute for the
- patience with which he dealt with the correspondence.

Mr. Vauance: I will agree with that.
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Hon. Mr. Stevens: He exhibited lots of patience with Mr. Whiteside. He
made just one little slip, apparently. We cannot find anything in the records
to justify Sir George having written what he did. He was dictating a long
letter to a man who writes extraordinary letters, to put it mildly, and he
unfortunately made this slip. Now, surely, in the absence of any record at all,
or any evidence at all, we are not going to take one remark in Sir George's
letter and—I know of no record, and I know of no place where you can get
a record which will answer the question in the light of that quotation.

Mr. Torzge: Surely you can tell what the length of the period was?

Mr. TooLey: It was a very short period, but I cannot remember; two or
three weeks, at the very outside.

Mr. Torzge: Do you know if there was any grain sold?
Mr. TooLey: So far as I know, no.

Mr. Varrance: We come to a point where the British government says
they can buy wheat cheaper than $2.24!} which was guaranteed by the Cana-
dian government, and then they realized that they could not do that, so again
the Canadian farmer was gypped. I say “gypped” because he did not get the
full price, and he was the only person that was gypped during the war in
trade and commerce.

Mr. CampBeLL: Is not this a fact, there was no period at all in that year
in which there was an open market in Canada, no period at all?

Mr. TooLEY: Absolutely.

Mr. CampBeLL: There may have been an open world market, but not a
Canadian market.

Mr. Torzke: There was not an open buying market.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: We say this, that so far as we can find from the h
records there was no wheat sold, and we say further that the Dominion govern- g !
ment guaranteed during that period and the British government guaranteed __4
the price; in other words, the Dominion government guaranteed both ways, i
guaranteed the farmer his price, and guaranteed the price to the seller. 3

= Mg'. Torzre: Is there a record of that fact; that the wheat, if there was
any shipped from Canada to Great Britain and to the Allied countries during
that period, was sold to the Allied countries at the guaranteed price? ,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: All I can say is that every record I have persued '%
indicates this, the case of guaranteed price is the price upon which all of our [
wheat was sold. There was a short hiatus where the British authorities
hesitated—that is what you can call it, because they came back.

Mr. Torzke: 1 should like to know the length of that period during which
the British government was not buying at the guaranteed price.

Mr. Brown: Perhaps the figures I have here may be of some help. The
figures for the fiscal year 1919, which of course includes part of the 1918 crop,
show the amount of wheat delivered in the fiscal year 1919 to be 41,080,897 A
bushels, and the total amount received, $96,985,056 which makes it $2.31 a
bushel. Now, the number $2.31 is the average price received from Great
Britain—

Hon. Mr. Stevens: What year?

Mr. Brown: The fiscal year 1919, which includes part of the 1918 erop.
That works out to $2.31 for all grades of wheat, while the $2.24} was for the
highest grades, so you see there is a spread there. When I came to deal with
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the fiscal year 1920-21 the figures were so confusing to me I could not come to
any conclusion whatever, because they worked out to less than what the farmer
actually received.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Mr. Brown, do not forget you are carrying your
deductions into the year of the Canadian Wheat Board, are you not?

Mr. Brown: Not so far as the fiscal year 1919 is concerned. There is no
wheat market in March.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: No.

Mr. Youna: You stated the price in Canada was $2.21 in 1917, $2.24 in
1918. What was it in the United States during the same year?

Mr. Brown: That does not enter into the argument at all.
Mr. TooLEY: Practically the same price.
Mr. Younag: Any difference owing to the difference in quality?

Mr. ToorLey: Fixed prices on wheat, 1917 crop: United States (basis Duluth
and Minneapolis) :
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Mr. VaLtance: Mr. Tooley has all the prices from 1916, 1917, 1918, and
1919. We will revert back again to the portion of the 1916 crop. I suppose you
will have it all there. A portion of the 1916 crop was covered in the report.

Mr. TooreEy: I do not remember it.

Mr. Varrance: The Minister stated that the grain was cornered because of

- the fact that they could not deliver. They could not deliver it and they would

not take any lower grade in substitution. I should like to get now, if it is

possible, the relationship regarding prices that existed between lower grades

and the top grades, because my experience as a farmer of western Canada of 25

- years is, when number one goes to $3, number four and number five go up
equal to it.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: There is the commercial spread.
Mr. Brown: Spreads get very wide.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: The spread is governed by the quantity of the different
grades. For instance, if there is a scarcity of number one and two and a lot
of number four and five, then the spread is going to be wider than if there is a
- small portion of number four and five and a heavy portion of number two.

Mr. Younag: We are told that there were four cents levied on the export
wheat and two cents on the local wheat. If we knew exactly how much each
of these different classes yield in revenue we may have an idea of who owns that

b -
: Hon. Mr, Stevens: I would say to Mr. Young that after giving this very
- very careful consideration, I agree with him in his observations. I think that

~ the $428,000 belongs to the Wheat Export Company. When I say “ belongs
~ to the Wheat Export Company " it really can be considered as a surplus left
~over. They made a settlement with the Wheat Export Company on a two

~and a half million dollar basis, so that everybody was satisfied, and this has

gone into the consolidated fund. Compared with the whole transaction of

o
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handling 335,000,000 bushels of wheat in that period, it is a comparatively small
amount; and bearing in mind this, that as far as the Dominion government is
concerned, and the Board itself is concerned, there were no salaries paid, all the
service of the whole paraphernalia was given free to the government.

Mr. Torzke: I would like to ask the Minister if he is tabling a report of the
documents along with the other documents?

Hon, Mr. Stevexs: Yes.

Mr. Torze: 1 would then suggest that the committee adjourn to a future
date in order to give us a chance to go through the documents that are before
the committee. I think T can also suggest that perhaps Mr. Tooley need not
stay any longer because he apparently does not know anything about the very
thing that we want to investigate, that portion of the 1918 crop which is sup-
posed to have been sold on the open market.

Mr. Varrance: Would the grain trade have the right by the Government
to sell wheat on the open market for what they could get with the assurance
that they could not get less than this $2.24}?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: May I clear that point. The secretary advises me
that whatever happened in that period that we are discussing, that nebulous
two or three weeks, not a bushel was sold to anyone else except the Wheat
Export Company. What he said a while ago was this. He did not think there

was any, or very little, if any, sold during that period, because the Wheat

Export Company were refusing to guarantee. We were contending with them
—when I say we, I mean the Canadian people, the Canadian government—we
were contending with them that they could guarantee it to the public, and
they refused. During that time it is reasonable to assume none was sold but
it certainly was not sold to anybody else. That, I think, we can make clear.

Mr. Torzxe: If the Allied Purchasing Commission were not guaranteeing

the price, it stands to reason that the Purchasing Board would not be purchasing
during that period.

Mr. Vavrance: If they were purchasing wheat, we have no knowledge
as to where they were going to sell it.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: T think this point should be appreciated by the farmers
of the west: in that period the Dominion Government said, “ we will take this
up with the Wheat Export Board and we guarantee not only that your price

shall be so much, but we guarantee that it realizes that much. If it realizes
less, we pay the difference.”

Mr. Torzre: And if it realized more?
Hon, Mr. Stevens: It did not realize more.

; I(‘id‘; Torzke: Was there any grain sold on the open market during that
perio

Hon. Mr. Stevens: None except to the Wheat Board, the Wheat Export
Company, and as far as we know, none to them.

Mr. Torzke: May I come back to my question. If during that period
the Allied Purchasing Commission under the Allied Governments whose agents
or purchasing board in this country, were not buying at a fixed price, it stands

to reason that their purchasing board was not going to buy at a fixed price
during that period? ~

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I have tried to make that clear. There is no doubt

thfat ;g that two or three weeks the representatives of the British Government
refused.
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Mr. Torzke: You assume two or three weeks?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Now, gentlemen, are you going to pin me down? 1
say this that there is no record as far as I have been able to find, and the
Secretary of the Board has a clear recollection of it—there is no record to
show that a single bushel was sold during that period.

Mr. Varrance: Would it be possible—I know you do not want to do it—
to get from the Export Board how much wheat they bought from Canada in
that year? And what they did not buy we will know must have been sold some-
where else. That will give us what we are after. :

Hon. Mr. Stevens: There is no objection to the Committee going to that
trouble. I will say this that it is difficult for us. I imagine that we can only
do it through the Department of External Affairs. It will mean asking the
British Government to open their records back for thirteen years, and for what
purpose? I refuse you nothing. I have told you that clearly. I merely submit
the question to you: as a reasonable proposition have you any evidence? If
there was one atom of evidence to indicate that there was anything wrong, then
I would have no compunction about it; but in the absence of that evidence,
would it not look a little strange to the British Government and the Allied
Governments if we asked them now to do this. They might politely tell us that
the records are not available.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: May I make a suggestion. You must remember that
Dr. Magill is not now alive. I will make inquiries in regard to this particular
point, and we can adjourn this meeting until some other day.

The CuairmMaN: How long a time will you need?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Let us say next Tuesday or Wednesday, or something
like that.

Mr. Vaucance: We might meet in a sub-committee.
Hon. Mr. Stevexns: I will try to clear that point.

The CuHamrMAN: This committee will have to be brought together again in
any event to dispose of the matter.

Mr. Brown: I move the Committee adjourn until this day week.

The Committee adjourned to meet Thursday next, June 11, 1931.










SESSION 1931

HOUSE OF COMMONS

SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

ON

AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

No. 1

TUESDAY, JUNE 9, 1931

“ Order of Reference,—Re Handling and Marketing Agricultural Products.

OTTAWA
F. A. ACLAND
PRINTER TO THE KING'S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY
1931






¥

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or COMMONS,
Tuespay, June 9, 1931.

The meeting came to order at 11 o’clock a.m. Mr. Senn presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bertrand, Blair, Bouchard, Brown, Campbe.ll,‘
Carmichael, Cayley, Coote, Donnelly, Duguay, Loucks, Lucas, McKenzie,
MecMillan, Motherwell, Mullins, Myers, Perley, Pickel, Porteous, Senn, Shaver,
Simpson, Stewart (Lethbridge), Stirling, Swanson, Taylor, Totzke, Tummon,
Vallance, Weir (Melfort), Young. '

The Chairman read the Order of Reference of May 28, 1931, viz:

TuUrspAY, May 28, 1931. =~

Resolved, Whereas the marketing of Canadian farm products of all
descriptions is a matter of very major importance. 2

Therefore be it ordered by this House that the Committee on Agri-
culture and Colonization do proceed with an investigation into methods
of handling and marketing agricultural products of all kinds and that
they be given authority to eall such witnesses to this end as may seem to

them necessary and report from time to time, and that the Committee _:

be granted leave to print 1,000 copies (English) and 300 copies (French)

of each proceeding and of the evidence to be taken by it, together with

such papers and documents as may be incorporated with such evidence
for the use of the Committee and for the use of the Members of the
House and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.
(Sgd.) ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

The Hon. Mr. Weir, Minister of Agriculture, Dr. Grisdale, Deputy Minister
and Officers of the Department were in attendance. ) Q

The Hon. Mr. Weir being called on addressed the committee suggesting some
of the matters that might profitably be investigated. ;

W. A. Brown, Chief of the Poultry Division of the Department of Agri-
culture addressed the committee on the subject of handling and marketing
poultry and eggs. - '

Mr. Brown to file a statement of the spread of costs between producer and
consumer of eggs. ;

-

~

Mr. MacMillan, Chief of the Sheep and Hogs Division of the Department

of Agriculture to attend and address the committee at the next meeting.
The meeting adjourned at the call of the Chair.

: A. A FRASER,  +

Clerk of the Comma'tfee. R
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House oF ComMONS,
June 9, 1931.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11.00 a.m. to consider Order of Reference, of May 28 respecting the marketing
and handling of agricultural products, the Chairman, Mr. Senn presiding.

The CrARMAN: First of all I will read to the committee the order of refer-
ence covering the business we are to deal with this morning. It was moved in
the House of Commons by Mr. Weir some days ago:—

Whereas the marketing of Canadian farm products of all descrip-
tions is a matter of major importance, therefore be it ordered by this
House that the Committee on Agriculture and Colonization do proceed
with an investigation into methods of handling and marketing agricul-
tural produets of all kinds, and that they be given authority to call such
witnesses to this end as mayv seem to them necessary, and report from
time to time; and that the committee be granted leave to print a thousand
copies in English and three hundred copies in French of each proceeding
and of the evidence to be taken by it together with such papers and docu-
ments as may be incorporated with such evidence for the use of the
Committee, and for the use of the members of the House, and that
Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Gentlemen, we have with us this morning Mr, Weir, the Minister of Agri-
culture. I understand that he has to leave shortly for a council meeting, so he
will speak to you first. Dr. Grisdale is also present as are Mr. Brown and Mr.
MacMillan of the Department of Agriculture. ,

Hon. Mr. Weir: In the first place, I think we all agree on this, that the
fundamental aim of the committee is to see if we ean make it possible for the
producer to get more value in proportion to what the consumer pays than he is
getting at the present time. There are two methods which I might term roughly,
marketing by the so-called private interests and co-operative marketing. We
realize to a certain extent some of the weaknesses of the one, perhaps, and the
dangers of the other. Personally, I think it is a good thing for us to have both
systems—if we call them by that name, at the present time—both the co-oper-
ative system and the private interests system. 1 do not think this committee
could do any better work than bring in recommendations that would be helpful
to the Department of Agriculture as to how we might control this matter. I
have definite ideas of my own in that respect, but I am going to avoid as far as
I can this morning giving you my own thoughts in regard to these matters,
because T want the committee to be free to attack these problems without any

prejudice or any direction along certain lines. I would say this, however, that i

I feel we should have a committee which would be representative of the private
interests’, distributors, the co-operative interests, and the producer which would

meet from time to time to discuss the various possibilities of marketing and the

best way for the farmers to put their produce on the market to avoid, as far as

possible, interests buying at a bottom price and holding for a certain time, and

* then, so to speak, holding up the consumer by exploitation without the producer

getting the fair proportionate value that he is entitled to. '
» 19
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In studying the market of agricultural products we run into a lot of practical
difficulties which are somewhat similar, no matter what the product is, and
which, I think, force us all to this conclusion that what is needed is more educa-
tion for the producers as to what they should produce, and as to when it should
be prepared to go on the market. For example, there is the case of live stock
for which our best maket is in the Old Country. Some of the cattle we have
sold there I understand net back to the producer in Ontario over seven cents
a pound, and in the west six and a half cents a pound, while the same cattle,
if there was no outlet for them—and we regret there is not as much of an outlet |
as we would like—would only bring in the west in the neighborhood of four and ;]
a half cents a pound. Now, we feel that we should like the lowest freight rate
that we can get. We feel that the steamship companies should put some boats
at the disposal of the live stock men in Canada to carry this live stock to the
Old Land. Here is one of their objections and one of our difficulties. We
realize that we cannot expect them to put boats at our disposal just for an
operation of two months. It is expensive for them to fit the boats up and
to turn them from certain trade channels to a trade channel from Canada to
the Old Country to carry cattle.” I think that we all realize that if we want
our cattle carried at the cheapest rate from this market to the Old Country
market. the supply must be so distributed as to make it possible for steamships
to operate their boats for the longest possible period of time. I give you that
just as an illustration of what I feel is essential on the part of our producers,
in the way of an educational program to show them the difficulties that men
who handle their products are confronted with in order to dispose of them at
a minimum cost. Problems such as that you can discuss. I feel that what we
must, have is a man who is an expert on marketing; not an authority on co-
operative marketing so much as a man without prejudice or bias who will
study the whole problem of marketing and give to private interests and co-
operative interests alike the benefit of any information he may be able to get.
I had thought in this connection that our agricultural colleges should pay more
attention to the subject of marketing. You realize that education is the work
of the provinces and, therefore, I feel that we should add something to that—
something which might be called a treat or a luxury, or something on top of
their regular work—by bringing one or two of the best authorities from different
countries at the expense of the Federal Government, and allowing them to go
through the different colleges and give special lectures there. I feel that prob-
ably one of the most important factors in this whole matter is that of education.
I was surprised to learn that in the Old Country they have not chairs on market-
ing even 1n their most advanced agricultural colleges. They seem to rely almost
entirely on their wholesale cooperative associations, but these wholesale co-
operative associations are not agricultural. They had agricultural cooperative
~ associations—they have some at the present time in the Old Land—but they
- were at variance, at least the wholesale cooperatives were more at variance
with the agricultural cooperative associations, and the agricultural cooperative
associations have not been so sueccessiul in their business enterprises as have
the wholesale cooperatives. However, the wholesale cooperatives are now
- changing their attitude towards this whole question, and they are fostering

- agricultural associations. Personally, 1 feel, due to the success of wholesale
cooperatives in the Old Land, that one of the best things we could do is to
get one of their best experts to come to this country for a period of time and
give us the benefit of his experience. There is one objection to that:
although they might be thoroughly versed with cooperative marketing in the
Old 30un¢ry, they will not have the Canadian viewpoint, so it is a question
whether he would be better advised to have one of those men come here or to
have an outstanding Canadian go over to the Old Land and make a thorough
study of their cooperative marketing and other methods of marketing. Our
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representative might also visit Denmark and the United States, and come back o
to this country and give our agricultural colleges, farm organizations, coopera- ,
tive organizations and so on, the benefit of what he has learned. In general

that is the object I had in mind when moving this resolution.

i Now, to come down to a more practical consideration of the problem, I

‘T thought we should first take up the marketing of dairy produets, bacon products

and poultry products, because they are the most universal throughout the
Dominion. In the first place let us consider the marketing of our poultry
products. Great advance has been made we believe in the past few years with
respect to putting our poultry products on the market in the best possible way

by a svstem of grading. Now, there is a great deal of objection from different
sources even to this grading as it is being done at the present time. Some claim

that it costs too much to grade the eggs and pack them. 1 believe it costs
around four cents at the present time. Perhaps I am wrong in that statement.

©  But, whatever the cost is that takes so much off the bottom, the wholesaler and

{*  retailer takes so much off the top, and the producer comes in between, and the

| tendency is that his margin is very slight. I have asked Mr. Brown to come

? before vou this morning in this connection. He is, I believe, our best authority

" in connection with poultry grading—the grading of poultry products of various

¢ kinds. He will explain to you how it is done, and what it costs. You may then

I ask him any questions that you wish regarding the difficulties that you see

! in the way of it being the success we would like it to be. After Mr. Brown,

we will have Mr. MacMillan who is in charge of the sheep and swine division

{* and he will explain to you the method of hog grading and the cost of hog

i’i grading; and he will be glad to receive suggestions from you as to improve-
|

e

ments along that line or to answer any ecriticisms or objections you may have

to the way in which that grading is done. There are some who feel that there

should be no hog grading; that the expense incurred is not warranted. There

are some of those here to-day. There are others who feel that the margin 4]

should be greater between the slack bacon that we will have to rely on to get U1

the Old Country market and the butcher or larger type of hogs. There are :

others who feel that the grading should be done on the rail rather than in the e

vards. These questions Mr. MacMillan will be glad to discuss with you and v 4

answer them if he is able to. So, for the beginning I would recommend that

vou discuss the marketing of poultry products, and secondly that you discuss

the marketing of bacon products, and third, the marketing of dairy products. e
The Cuamman: Now, gentlemen, we have heard what the Minister has e

had to say. What is the pleasure of the committee: shall we call Mr. Brown?

|
Mr. Garuanp: Might I suggest that whilst 1 thoroughly agree with the |
Minister as to the importance of the subjects in regard to agriculture which i
he has mentioned, I am, I think, a little disappointed that he has not approached
the question of wheat marketing. Possibly he has that in his mind, e
Hon. Mr. Weir: Absolutely. I thought I made that clear, Mr. Garland. : :ﬂ)W
My idea was that we would take these subjects up first because they are of % L,‘ﬂ
more universal application and I thought they could be dealt with more expediti- ¥
ously than the wheat. 1 do not know whether it would be in order for me to *
suggest it or not, but I had in mind certain additional people that we should ,
call into consultation on the subjects of poultry, bacon and dairying. In regard syl

ey

to poultry, I would suggest the President of the Canadian Poultry Pool, Mr. gt
Landreth, with headquarters at Winnipeg. As to packing men, I would suggest
people from both the large packing associations and the private concerns. Also,

- in connection with bacon I would suggest that you would eall in one of the o
outstanding men in the Canadian Packers—I think Mr. Silcox is the name—of L
Montreal. Perhaps the representative from Snyders; Mr. Morrison from
Dumarts; and the heads of the various co-operative bacon associations in s
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Ontario. It might be well to call in some commission men dealing in live stock.
I would also suggest Mr. McKay, head of the Canadian Live Stock Association,
;md Mr.kArkell, and representatives of some of the larger packing concerns in
ive stock.

Mr. VaLrance: Some of the members do not know who Mr. Brown is. The
question has been asked me.

- The CaARMAN: Mr. Brown is at the head of the Egg and Poultry Division
of the Department of Agriculture.

Mr. Brown called.

Mr. Brown: Mr, Chairman and gentlemen, the egg trade improvement
campaign was started in 1912, first with an inquiry into the quality of eggs then
being marketed, the results of that inquiry being found in Bulletin 16 of the
Live Stock Branch series. It showed not only a regrettably high percentage of
eggs going into consumptive channels that were absolutely unfit for food, but a
large percentage of lower grades, little better than bad eggs. The first steps
taken were purely voluntary, an attempt being made to get the buyers of eggs
generally throughout Canada to agree not to pay for bad eggs. It worked
fairly well while the market was flush with produet, but the agreement did not
last long when the market became bare.

A good deal of agitation was created with respect to bad egg legislation.
Most of the States in the Union had it. It was not done in Canada except in

art by the Food Board, one reason being that after some time we learned
in demonstrations, exhibitions and elsewhere, that we were not getting anywhere,
at least, with the consuming public, by showing them and talking to them
about bad eggs. What they wanted to know was how to get good eggs, and from
that time on there has been a radical change. In Janu